City of Beacon

Asset Management Database User Manual

September 2019

Delaware Engineering, D.P.C 28 Madison Avenue Extension Albany, NY 12203

Hudson Valley Pattern for Progress 3 Washington Center Newburgh, New York 12550

Contents

1.0	Purpose1
2.0	Introduction1
3.0	Scope
4.0	Definitions
5.0	Responsibilities
6.0	Specific Procedures
6.1	Adding Data
6.2	2 Writing over existing data
6.3	3 Sorting Data
6.4	4 Filtering Data
6.5	5 Combining Asset Information9
6.0	5 Cost Analysis Worksheet
6.7	7 Drop-down Menus
7.0	Updating the Tool
7. 1	Additional Data Capture
7.2	2 Standardization of Units
8.0	Database Document Control and Change History

1.0 PURPOSE

The City of Beacon did not previously have an inventory of its assets. Prior to this City of Beacon Asset Management and Capital Planning Project, asset information was dispersed across many different documents, departments, data sets and maps. An asset inventory is the essential foundation of management and planning, especially with regard to assets of high value and criticality such as sewer and water infrastructure. The creation of an inventory is a major step toward continuity of institutional knowledge as older, knowledgeable workers may retire, taking their knowledge with them, and leaving the City vulnerable to making decisions with incomplete information. The maintenance of an inventory is essential to the City's on-going ability to manage its assets. This Asset Management and Capital Planning Tool will assist the City in maintaining infrastructure and public assets at the desired level of service at the lowest life cycle cost. The products of this work are an Excel database tool, a User Manual and an Asset Management and Capital Planning Guide.

This User Manual describes the use and maintenance of the database Tool that includes an inventory of the City's major assets identifying current asset conditions and levels of service using Excel software.

The city will be able to use the Tool to prioritize investments in major repairs or replacements, including estimating costs and lifecycles, and to align similar or related projects for efficient implementation. In addition, the tool will be used to evaluate financing alternatives to allow for sound planning and implementation. The Tool enables the City to cross check asset inventories with insurance lists to ensure all critical assets are covered, and that assets that have been sold or demolished or otherwise are no longer part of the asset inventory are no longer covered under insurance.

As a stand-alone capital asset planning and management decision support tool, the database is not designed for tracking daily work and repair activities. More specifically the Tool is intended to be used to answer questions about assets. Different assets are listed on separate worksheets which allows the use to search for, sort and filter different aspects of those assets. Lists generated in answer to a specific question can also be mapped in a geographical information system (GIS) in most cases.

2.0 INTRODUCTION

The data in the database was compiled primarily from available reports and information supplied by the City of Beacon; including existing Geographical Information System (GIS) data, insurance information, facility plans and information provided by City staff. This information is organized in the database according to type, with one asset type to a worksheet.

The database data can also be tied to, and worked with, in a Geographical Information System. Lists of specific assets of interest can be generated within the database Tool and then visualized spatially in GIS. The database Tool is intended to be actively managed and updated by the City. It contains analysis features that allow the City to sort, view, rank, correlate and otherwise analyze diverse asset information, and update this information as needed. Updates to the information on the assets within the tool are necessary to maintaining the tool's usefulness. The metadata file for the Tool is included in the Appendices of this User Manual and includes information helpful to understanding the information included in the database. As the City adds information to the database Tool, the metadata file should also be updated to reflect origin of data added.

The database Tool was designed to facilitate the City adding data, using drop-down menus and other tools, in ways that ensure the new data is added in a standardized format that permits filtering, ranking and sorting methods to function. The database Tool includes all data provided by the City during the project timeframe, and provides a structure for filling in data that the City develops as need arises.

This Tool is created in Microsoft Excel. Excel includes a "Help" tab in the main menu as well on-line assistance. This user manual is intended to demonstrate how to manage, update and utilize the Tool for answering City questions on assets and asset management at the level of a basic understanding of Excel.

3.0 SCOPE

Asset management is a process municipalities can use to make sure that planned maintenance can be conducted and capital assets can be repaired, replaced or upgraded on time and that funding is in place when needed. Asset management is the practice of managing infrastructure capital assets to minimize the total cost of owning and operating these assets while delivering the desired service levels. Information about assets is critical to this process. The database Tool is intended to assist in maintaining information about the assets of the City.

The Major Assets that populate the database tool include:

*Wastewater Treatment *Sewer Collection System *Manholes *Water Treatment *Water Lines *Water Hydrants *Stormwater Pipes *Stormwater Features *Roads *Parking Lots *Bridges *Sidewalks *Vehicles *Fuel tanks *Generators *Buildings

*Recreational Facilities *City Land *Streetlights *Traffic Signals *Wayfinding and Welcome Signage *University Settlement Camp

4.0 **DEFINITIONS**

These terms are used in this manner in this Manual;

Document Control – Management of document flow and storage in an organization through various functions and processes. These include maintaining files and using proper distribution and revision procedures to maintain quality.

Data Format – Excel lets you specify the way data is displayed in a cell, as a number, text or date, for example.

Drop-down menu – A list of valid entries that can be set for a data range; will make data entry easier and, by limiting entries to certain values, standardize spelling and other factors to ensure data can be filtered, sorted or otherwise analyzed consistently.

Revision History – Part of Document Control, a record of changes made to a document, by whom and for what purpose.

Workbook - in Excel, a single file consisting of at least one up to a large number of worksheets

Worksheet – in Excel, a single spreadsheet composed of rows and columns, each worksheet is identified as a tab across the bottom of the workbook.

5.0 RESPONSIBILITIES

The City of Beacon is responsible for the maintenance of this tool, both in document control and data updates. It is the decision of the City to whom to assign the responsibility of data management and document control (see Section 8.0 for recommendations). That individual may assign specific update tasks as needed, while always maintaining a Master version of the database for recovery/to prevent accidental deletions or corruption of the Tool/database. A copy of the database, with a department specific name, may be given to various City departments, as needed, for their use. Changing the name of each copy that is created/distributed will help avoid confusion with the Master.

The database has been populated with as much data on as many priority assets as possible during the development process. It is the responsibility of the City to add data to those assets that are not complete as the City moves forward.

6.0 Specific Procedures

This Tool is created in Microsoft Excel, using tables. Microsoft maintains Excel "help" sites online and there is a "Help" tab in the main menu in Excel. Excel works with spreadsheets organized into columns and rows. In this database, there are many individual worksheets, identified by tabs along the bottom of the workbook open in the Excel window. Each tab has the title of the asset type on that worksheet, they are listed across the bottom of the Excel window. Click on a particular tab to view the worksheet with the data for that asset. Each worksheet row has information about a particular component of that tab's asset type. The available information is kept in columns, with titles across the top.

The Database Tool can be "locked" to prevent changes, and "unlocked" for use when needed. When the database is protected, some functionality is unavailable. For example, if a worksheet is protected, and the database Tool "locked" the filter function will not be available.

6.1 ADDING DATA

On many worksheets, data is lacking for a particular asset. For example, for Traffic Signals there is no entry for "date installed/repaired" or "Condition". As the City continues regular work on traffic signals, the information can be populated as appropriate.

To enter data, select the Tab (what asset type) at the bottom of the Excel database to open the correct worksheet. Find the asset row, identify the column of information to add, select the cell and type the information in (Figure 6.1). Often there will be a drop-down menu available so that standardized entries can be made (Figure 6.2).

	100												1
100	Hone	toot PageLaptat Torrodo 1	hata Bestew	Yow Help Fact FDF A	teble De	unga 🛛 Tell me sehat you went to de							State:
10	111	A DA LANK	Show Queries From Table Recent Sources Namiform	Tornet Districtions April 20 Connections	The Content	The to Part Renove Data Convertible (Columne TH Depictor Widdoo - Data freis	Relationships Relationships Analysis - Sheet Analysis - Sheet Analysis - Sheet	Group Ungroup	13 Baseline 15 Baseline				
	ECORTY WO	VONING Some active content has been disable	d. Clock had sector de	the Enable Content									18
Ŧ10		11 X 2 A											
a.	22		1		11 2441	Formita Bar	1	A 12 US	11.1.2	1. 10.1		1000	¥ 25
				-	Traffic Signal	ds							
1		(MARCON CO.	2000	1.0000000000000000000000000000000000000	No. of Concession, Name		and the second second second	Remaining					
3	South (D	Location	Style	Weleced?	Condition	Date Installed/Repaired Expected Lifespan	Kepoir/seplace Date	Lifespan					
3	ISG0001	Willow St & Verplanck Ave		Unmetered									
	15G0002	East Main & Main St		Unmetered									
	15(30003	Main St & Faller Ave		Metered									
112 112	15 G 0004	Verplanck & Fishkill		Metered									
,	15 G8005	North Ave & Verplanck Ave		Metered									
	15.G0006	Fankti Ave & Mil St		Unmetered									
	15-60007	Wolcoll & South/Dennis Aven		Metered									
	15G0008	Route 9D / Main St		Metered		<hr/>							
1	IS GOOP	Wolcott Ave & Boronda		Metered									
2	ts Gabla	stplanck at Mattewary'N Cedar		Metered									
	15G0011	Valn at N Chestnut/S Chestnut		Metered									
14	15G6012	slarth (W Church) at Beekman		Metered									
15													
17													
18 19													
20													
	0 ml	Water Hydroets Vilater Trustment	Stormwater Ape	s Stormwater Features Ag	ets Perking Lots	a Bridgen Sidevolks vehicler Buildings 1	Inertigitts Traffic Signals	Wayfinding +welcome sig	Ringer Recre	atonal Facility	e: ceyland	÷ @	1.

FIGURE 6.1

NOTE: to add install/repair date data for the Route 90/Main Street light, find the correct cell, select it, type the date, press Enter.

6.2 WRITING OVER EXISTING DATA

Often the existing information will need to be changed for a particular asset, such as the "installed" date on the Water Line worksheet. If a particular water line is replaced, the date can be changed simply by writing over the existing date in a particular cell. In some cases, such as the water line material, there are specific abbreviations for each type that can be chosen from a drop-down menu. This standardization of naming materials allows the sorting and filtering functions to create more useful lists. At the appropriate cell, chose the drop-down arrow to the right to reveal the list of materials and chose the correct updated material type (Figure 6.2).

If a section of waterline, for example, is replaced, the date, material and length of new pipe may all need to be updated.

K. Cut D Copy - F Farmat Paintae abound S	analy lattice $+ \Omega + A^*$ $I = I = \Omega + \Omega + \Delta^*$ Furt	A ² = = ⊗ · S Weg Set · □ = = M B ⊡ (Sec) × · Algoret	t S = % + % 3 Netter 0	Normal Bad Table - Annual Charlengtory Table - 3	Good Nextinal Input Initial Cell Initial	Cabualation Note , Inari Debite Former , Celu	AutoSum = Aug Fit- Suit 8: Find 8: Cher= Esting
A	e ace	c	D	E		G	н
	4	Wate	r Distribution System				Water Main
Query ID	DOTID	Block ID	Road Name	Start of Section	End of Section	Water Main Material	Linear Feet
WSL0173	186874	222	STONE ST	STONE ST	•	ACP	
WSL0076	186765	111	FALCONER ST	ODELL ST	DEPUYSTER A CIP		
WSL0091	186092	402	VERPLANCK AVE	SCHENCK AVE	FISHKILL AVE	ACT	
WSL0339	186771	424	FOWLER \$T	TELLER AVE	FULTON AVE	ACP	
WSL0069	186726	102	BEACON ST	S ELM ST	HUBERT ST	ACP	
WSL0531	186874	654	STONE ST		LIBERTY ST	ACP	
WSL0071	186726	106	BEACON ST	CLIFF ST	S ELM ST	ACP	
WSL0070	186726	103	BEACON ST	HUBERT ST	S WALNUT ST	ACP	
WSL0373	186895	463	VINE ST	S CHESTNUT ST	TELLER AVE	ACF	
WSL0364	186768	452	FISHKILL AVE	MAINST	VERPLANCK AVE	ACP	
WSL0053	186836	82	ORCHARD PL	CROSS ST	W WILLOW ST	ACP	

FIGURE 6.2

NOTE: Cells with drop-down menus will have a "down arrow" when the cell is selected. Click the down arrow and then scroll through the drop-down list to select the menu item to place in the cell.

6.3 SORTING Data

Each of the worksheets can be sorted. For example, one might want to have a list of water lines by pipe material for prioritization of replacement of a particular material. From the main menu across the top of the page choose the "Data" menu. Within the Data menu, choose "Sort". A new window will open. In that Sort window, select the column you want to sort by using the drop-down menu (small arrow down). Then choose what to Sort On, using the next drop-down menu and then select the order for the list (Figure 6.3a). Click "OK", and the list will be re-arranged as you selected (Figure 6.3b). If Water Main Material is sorted by AtoZ, all pipes of ACP will be listed first, then CIP, then DIP, etc. With this sorted list, you can sort again within each material

type. Open the Sort window again, and select "Add Level" and again choose which column to sort, diameter for example. The list will then be ordered by pipe material, and within each pipe material type the list will be ordered by diameter. This new list can be printed, or saved as a new worksheet in Excel outside of the database for use elsewhere.



FIGURE 6.3a

NOTE: 1 - Select Data Menu, 2 - Select Sort, 3 - Select Water Main Material to Sort By

FIGURE 6.3b

e Har	the locart Page	Legend Permit	al Des Testes V	lew line nuitfor	Actoriat 1	Design 🔮 Tella	ne nalisi yana nanet ta da											St am
	Carlos Ca		Show Queries	Corrections At . Corrections	Ten Per	To Advanced Col	ta flait famou ens, Fal Dapicala	Data Sceli	tatu Relationships And	a di Ferenat vili - Shet Paraat	Till for an	4.4	lease () to					
	• n e. v.	fe.																
4		6	n		× .		Him Ho	and the second	a)	-	141	1	14	н	0			
		Water	r Distribution System	1			Water Mi	in Information										
Quary ID	0010	Block ID	Read Name	Start of Section	find of Section	Water Main Moto	use - User Fr	et Oceanie	Dele Instatled/Report	145	Notes							
w54010	606629	202	\$10ME \$1	STONE BY		ACP		ten :				1						
V3L0576	105705		PALCONERIST	conist	DERVISTERAVE	ACP		40										
WELSOP	10000	-902	VERPLANCKAVE	BCHENCK AVE	R9-KLL AVE	ACP		fin										
VQ.0223	96779	424	10-ALERGI	TELLERING	PLATONIKAE	ACP		445										
V3.005	R06728	102	BEALDWST	56.M57	HUDDHT 51	ACF		445										
WSL/ISIT	196874	054	SICREST		DEBUGAR	ACP		410										
water	101220	105	REACONST.	D.#*st	SILVISI	ACP		440										
A370640	106726	107	BEACONST	HUDDINF ST	5 KALAUTST	ACP		4 int.										
w94.0073	16695	- 40	Smill 97	9049704/91	TELEPLANE	ALP		Ray.										
V5.0394	106700	42	FEP93LAVE	MAN/S7	VERPLANEX AVE	ALP		tin.										
V9.0083	105630	12	ORCHARGINE.	CPICSIS ST	WHELOWST	ACP		411										
w94/081	196836	10	ORCHWEIDPL	XV810×St	VELOVIST	ACP		die.										
93.00H	100825	in	MOUNTABLA	ENWYST		ACE		5 m										
V51388	100833	216	VESLEYAVE	ORACE ST		ALT!		6in										
\$98,0096	106700	-407	DUTCHESIS THR	ROOKHLEREI		ACP		.te										
H51066	506863	20	SOUTHANE	SOUTHAVE		ACP		Em										
V3L0403	886773	901	PULTONAVE	VPEST		ACP		ter.										
99,0040	\$96760	85	FORMU, AVE	VERPLANCE XVE	ACKERMANS!	ACP		fire;										
HELDER	lastrid.	440	COPPEY AND	BESKINFL	ALDRENZ PL	ADI		84.										
¥9.0402	86804	454	SERETTET	CATHERINE ST	BEACONST	ACP		8n										
WSL0195	100741	246	EL PF ST	DESMOTOT	SEACORST	ALF		8m										
¥5,0072	696750	67	HUBBRI ST	ROMBOUT AVE	BEACONST.	ALP		Sec.										
WILDIN	100800	391	BICEDANIST	HOMOOVER .	BOACIDASE	ACP		the contract of the contract o										
1.451.01498		1	ADDITOT	E-MART	Tateracon			1. 55.00			CALIFORNIA DE LA CALIFICIA DE LA CALIFICA DE LA CALIFICALIFICA DE LA CALIFICA DE LA CALIFI	0.000		Water	STIP Seco	 11000	100	

NOTE: Result is Water Main sorted by Material and then Diameter

To save this new sorted list for use elsewhere (copy to Word as a table, copy to a new Excel spreadsheet for other work), select the columns and rows you want with the cursor, from the Home menu choose "copy" (on the left side of the menu bar) or simultaneously click Ctrl+C. Go to a new Excel sheet or Word document and select "Paste" from the Home menu, or click Ctrl+V. Your sorted list will be pasted.

The worksheet can be returned to its original order by again clicking Sort, selecting the second sorting level and clicking "Delete Level" and selecting to again sort by Query ID in the first level. Or simply do not save changes to the database after this sorting is completed before closing the database.

6.4 FILTERING DATA

The Data Menu also includes a Filter symbol (a funnel shape) that allows one to see only the selected filtered items. Filtering data is possible for most asset types and characteristics. Once the City completes Condition data for major assets, the City will be able to filter by Condition to see the assets most in need of investment. The City owns over 100 vehicles, filtering the vehicle inventory by year, department, vehicle type or cost of replacement enables informed discussions about the overall vehicle fleet and assists the City in planning ahead for purchases. Also, using either the NYS DOT ID (a code assigned by Department of Transportation to street segments), BLOCK ID, or road names, a user can filter lists of assets such as water and sewer mains, to see which are located on that road segment.

For example, suppose work was going to be done on Beacon Street and one wanted a list of those manholes on Beacon Street. Go to the Manholes worksheet by selecting its tab at the bottom of the workbook page. From the main menu at the top of the page, choose "Data" to open the Data menu. Select the Filter symbol, the background behind the symbol will change color when Filter is selected. To de-select it, simply click it again.

With the Filter symbol selected, each column will have a down arrow on its right side. Click that arrow to see the drop-down menu of filterable selections. To choose to see manholes on Beacon Street, click the drop-down menu on the Road column. The default is "Select All". Click the check box on "Select All" to select none. Then click the check box next to Beacon St in the drop-down menu (Figure 6.4a). Click "OK". Now the only manholes visible will be those on Beacon St. (Figure 6.4b).

To save this new filtered list for use elsewhere (copy to Word as a table, copy to a new Excel spreadsheet for other work), select the columns and rows you want, from the Home menu choose "copy" (on the left side of the menu bar) or simultaneously click Ctrl+C. Go to a new Excel sheet or Word document and select "Paste" from the Home menu, or click Ctrl+V. Your filtered list will be pasted. Then save that new file with a new name, as you need.

FIGURE 6.4a

	age Lapost Data Review View			leign 📿 Tellmen	fast you want to do.						
Get General Data	A Store Queins New Draw Table Dany - D Score Scores A Store Store Stores	Consectant	ere 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	#2	Person Dopicates Vi Do	Base Consultative Relationships at Teast	Mut If Forecast relyce - Sheet Forecast	Geve Organe Control	Tren Intel Hereit		
A	8 C	1	D	E	F	6	н	i.	j.	ĸ	x.
Query ID	Structure ID # Road Na	ne .	#3	Latitude	Longitude	Interior Diameter	Туре	Date inspected	Repair/Replace Date	Manhole	Notes
\$MH1002	21 Sert Atte 2		261942	41.5163925	73.98033254	48.COM	e "	8/20/2008	1		1
5MH1008	AL Spet 2 to #		261942	41,51814947	-73,98083053	48 COM	ю	8/20/2008		1 1	
SMH1012	Roted End Carlow		261942	41.51571438	-73.98110666	48 CON	È.	8/19/2008			
SMAH1016	S. Decitie for the form		261942	41.51531038	73.98144322	48 COM	R.	8/19/2008			
SANH1017	Opening Court	(*)	186824	#1.51499196	-73.98162951	48 COM	(8/19/2008			
SA4H1019	Test Street		186824	41.51410335	-73,98171241	48 COM		8/20/2008			
CANHLOOD	Sauch	D	184824	41.51319144	-79.981922a1	48 CHE		8/20/2008			
SMH1033	- C ANDERSON ST.			41.51188757	-73.98210646	48 COM	Ň	8/21/2008			
SMH1035	ANNAN ST.	12 11		41.51194569	-73,98246725	48 COM	ć.	8/21/2008			
SMH1042	E BARRETT PL.			41.51138406	-73,98251898	48 COM	1	4/12/2010			
A/H1045	- BAY NEW AVE	12.4		41.51179288	-73,98300741	57.COM		8/25/2008			
WH1049	- X BEACON ST	#4		41.51143692	-73.98360974	48 CON		6/25/2008			
WH1052	T BELLEFORD LA.		10	41.51074348	-73,98220707	48 COM	F	8/25/2008			
AH1056	- Dovce st.			41.51128164	73.98193774	48 CON		8/25/2008			
AMH1045			18497	41.50764183	-73.97457775	48 COM		3/24/2010			
SAH1070	Ot I	CROOM	18697	41.50771283	-73.97446457	48 CON	0	8/11/2008			
SAH1078	1078 WILLOW ST		18497	41.50837.492	-73 97382227	48 AR		5/11/2008			
0.041087	1087 OAK ST		184834	41.50917472	73 97301906	54 88		8/11/2008			
SAIH1092	1092 WILLOW ST		18497	41.50982176	73.9774633	48 58		8/11/2008			
3/H1097	1097 OPCHARD R		184834	41,51077547	-73 9714101	44 80		8/12/2008			
0.441104	1106 MADE ST		164915	41 50727815	73 979977A0	48.89		8/11/3008			
MH1127	1127 MAIN ST		184915	A1 50726358	.73.97391473	49.000		8/11/2008			
14411122	1133 DUCCER BURIES	TT	184754	AT 50744054	.73 07390000	48 (00)		8/11/2008			
CLAH1137	1137 DIGGER PHERE	011 017	184754	A1 50780271	79.07941001	40.000		8/11/2008			
21111121	1137 DIGGER PHELPS	- T-	100/00	+1.20/002/1	~~azc34(u?)	40 2.07	D2	0/11/2008			

NOTE: 1 – Select Data Menu, 2 – Select Filter, 3 – at the Roads filter dropdown, uncheck "Select All" and 4 -check "Beacon St"

FIGURE 6.4b

Horse Intern Pag	pelayout Familian Data	factors time Holy Tax	EFOF ACTUBAT De	and Q followsh	at you and the de						
Let Denne Des	toring Constant	er Table ert Soutes auf Soutes All - Consections All - Consections	" II (A) II	Clear Reapply 2 Advanced Columns	Remote Duplicates Ver	Sana Consolidate Relationshipe dation - e Tanto	What-I Forecast (Analysis - Sheet Towecast	Desap Ungroup Same	Prov Denet		
* 2.2	<i>f</i> .										
A	B	¢	D	E	F	6	H	X.	J.	ĸ	Ŀ
Query ID	Structure ID #	Road Name	DOT ID	Latitude	Longitude	Interior Diameter	Туре	Date Inspected	Repair/Replace Date	Manhole	Notes
H2425	2425 8	EACON ST.	186726	41.50630299	-73.97760709	48 1	IR:	11/20/2008			
H2438	2438 B	EACONST.	186726	41.50578208	-73,97641476	48 E	1R	3/4/2010			
H2442	2442 8	EACON ST.	186726	41,5055095	-73.97578871	48 1	IR	10/15/2008			
H2447	2447 8	EACON \$7.	186726	41.50535593	-73,97544123	48 f	3R	10/15/2008			
H2450	2450 B	EACON ST.	186726	41,505273	-73.97525237	58 f	1R	10/15/2008			
H2457	2457.8	EACON \$1.	18672#	41.50487219	-73.97435854	48 1	IR	10/15/2008			
H2459	2459 8	EACCIN ST.	186726	41 50474274	.73 97408027	48 5	IR .	10/15/2008			
12400	2450 0	CACONSI.	100/20	41.504/3015	-/3.9/4063/2	40 0	CON	10/10/2008			
12423	24/3 0	EACONST.	100/20	41.00442000	7207034134	40.0		11/20/2008			
H12500	2507 0	EACCINET	184726	41 20440084	79 0170075	40 /	DOM:	11/20/2008			
(12304	2.001 0	CHOOK M.	1007.20	4120040000	1331119013	- ap.(CON	11/20/2000			
Character Hardware	Companying I motor	New Yorkson Security Calls die	Andrew Manhadan	Martine Relation	Ministration 1 Million	Television I design that Party	and the second second second	and Parity I water	The Particular Ca	COLUMN TO MALER	10.45
could many	rue seedin	Sever Coversion	Manneles	water water	silver and and and	The second statement of the	and a sub-structure root	and rands ranning	con poges s	AND IN THE	

NOTE: The result is a list of manholes on Beacon Street

However, if you are working with Excel 2010 or a previous version, the Copy and Paste operation may copy all cells in the filtered range you selected, visible (filtered) and invisible (filtered out). In this case, select the columns and rows you want to copy, i.e. your filtered list. On the Home menu, choose Find+Select (far right), go to "Go To Special" then select the circle

for Visible Cells Only, and Click OK. Use Ctrl+C or "Copy" from the Home menu. Then go to the Word document or new Excel spreadsheet and select Paste or use Ctrl+V. Only the filtered table elements will be pasted.

The worksheet can be returned to its original order by turning off the Filter (click it again). Or clicking on Select All in the Filter for that column. Or simply do not save changes to the database after this filtering is completed, and then close the database without saving.

6.5 COMBINING ASSET INFORMATION

Each worksheet can be sorted or filtered as needed to display the information wanted. If similar information is needed on more than one asset type, that data can be gathered from separate worksheets and/or mapped in the City's Geographical Information System (GIS).

One main question the Tool can be used to answer is "what assets are located in this location". For example, a particular stretch of road is to be reconstructed, and there might be water or sewer or stormwater pipes under that stretch that could be replaced at the same time. The Roads worksheet includes a column for the presence of water, sewer or stormwater for each road segment (Figure 6.5). More information on those pipes is available by filtering the Water Lines, Stormwater and Sewer Collection worksheets for the particular block of road and producing a list of pipe type, size and age (where that information is available). The lists that are produced can also be shared with other City staff to get other information on these assets, such as how often do water line breaks occur in that location on these pipes.

Home X. C.e Riji Copy - Format Pal Ogeloand	nter 5	and formulat Data for $m_{0} \rightarrow [1] \rightarrow K^{*} K^{*} = [1]$ $\gamma \equiv \gamma (2 + \Delta \gamma) = [1]$ First γ_{1}	en Yan Hab Foot101 = ⊕ £ Wap Test = ⊕ E Mage & Canter Algement	- S - % - % 23	And you want to de Constituent Format as constituent Table -	ormal Bad	Golo natary Inga Salei	d Neid R	nit. Calm accelt Note	Addison	Film Provide Format	∑ AutoSum + Aug T F8+ Case+ Sort & Find Fare- Solar Casey	8 9 4
4		c	D	1	Т.	6	÷		3	ĸ		м	N
			Road Info					Presence		Ĵ.			
Block ID	DOTID	Street Name	Start Intersection	End Intersection	Length (leet)	No. of Lanes	Sewer	Storm	Water	One Way	Type	Width	Depl
	184478	SLOCUM RD	ROUTE 9D	N RIVER DR	843.37	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		-			A Aspinal (flexita	ie]	
2	184478	SLOCUM RD	FAIRWAYS LN	SLOCUM RD	\$36.49		Y.				A Asphalt (flexib	ie]:	
3	100505	ROUTEPD	ROUTE PD	WOLCOT AVE D	666.39						0 Overlay		
	301995	FAIRWAYS LN	FAIRWAITS IN	CUL DE SAC	206.01		. y	(w)			A Asphall (flexib	ie)	
18	007770	PAIRWARS UN	SLOCUM RD	CUL DE MAC	686.37		- 19	1 Yr 1			A Aquinuti (Nexto	iu)	
3	184398	HENRY ST		WASHINGTON AVE	920.86						A Asphalt (flexib	ie)	
Ť	184509	WASHINGTON AVE	OLD TOWN RD	HENRY 57	1452.30						A Asphalt (flexib	ie)	
8	184509	WASHINGTON AVE	HENRY ST	WASHINGTON AVE	754.04						A Asphalt (flexib	H(
9	184503	VAN NESS RD	ROUTE PD		1345.80		y				A Asphalt (Revis	ie)	
10	186899	WATER ST	SPRING VALLEY ST	E MAIN ST	498.65		7	4		TES	A Asphalt (flexib	ie)	
11	186763	ELIZA ST	CHURCH ST	CIAK ST	335.57		Ŧ	. 7	Ŧ		A Asphalt (Ilesta	lep)	
12	186763	ELIZA ST	DAK ST	VERPLANICK AVE	298.03		7	T	τ.		A Asphalt (flexit)	ia)	
13	186869	S WALNUT ST	BEACON ST	CATHERINE ST	250.34		Y	X.	100		A Asphalt (flexib	ie)	
14	186869	S WALNUT ST	CAPHERINE ST	DEWINDTST	172.05				(1)		A Asphall (flex)	le)	
-15-	184741	CLIFF ST	MAIN ST	COMMERCE ST	231.34		. Y	191	(/#0)	YES	A Asphalt (Reals	ie)	
16	186807	LEONARD ST	APAITY ST	GROVE ST	609,01		(Y	(r .		YES	A Asphalt (flexb)	ie)	
17	186845	RED FLYNN DR	BEEKMAN ST	LONG DOCK RD	264.00						A Aspholi (flexb)	(m)	

Figure 6.5

6.6 COST ANALYSIS WORKSHEET

The Cost Analysis worksheet (Figure 6.6) includes equations that can be used to estimate project costs, or to estimate how much of a project can be completed given funding availability. In each case the user will input either the bid price for a project and the extent of the project to estimate cost, or the amount of funding and bid price to estimate project extent.

There is a "total cost" cell at the bottom on the Project Cost side that will total all entries currently made in specific project types.

Directions on the worksheet indicate where inputs are needed. Other cells include calculations and are protected so that changes cannot be made accidentally. Information on the current bid for road work, water line replacement, etc., is necessary to utilize this cost estimation worksheet.

A Cue Cattor	$\frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{$	=_{0}+	ft West	ng A Tanbe -	5 a	5 × 1	ni di Lindhand karrata	Normal	Red.		Noor Ngal	-1		icano Note	0011		Aust Deb	a Format	∑i ∰ta- ∦ Cerr	- <u>\$</u> 2	Pend Al	
Cipboard	Fort	44	prease.			Sketter				350	**						64	1 A		Salary		
8	1																					
A I	F	D F		l Section	前	1164	1.1.1	×.	1.14	M	N	0	P	0	R	1.1%	1.0	1		w	3	¥.
			input field	£																		
			output te	kđ.																		
	8	ID and ARE	A to SCOST						SFUNDS and	d BID to	AREA O	LENGT	H									
	XM																					
Roads Milling and Paving	4						Roads Milling and Paving															
Cost per day	1	Enter bei rate '	milling and pa	ung"			Ford: available			1, Letur S	forcing ava	siable										
Average SY milled per day	6,211 0	ty Project Avera	ge 2019	Oty centre	m : .		Cost per day			2. Enter 1	bid rate " fri	ang and	saving"									
Cost per SY	\$0,00 B	earling cost be	59				Average SY collect per day		8,222	City proje	et average	3019		stry config	10							
Longth of road segment (yds)	2	Exter length of	road				Cost per 59		50.00	Resulting	(cost per St	-Longer										
Witth of road segment (yth)		Enter wigth of	teor				5% road per available funding		#DXV/D/	Resultan	t SF potenti	is per fan	ding avai	lable								
Square yard of road segment	P.S.	endant M er sk	rply exter SF	fknowit			Wigth of fload segment (yds)		CONTRACT 2	1. Enfort	with of rol	ad sugmes	a land									
Cost per road segment	50 H	ESUITING CES. C	bosen segmen	it (estimati	DFI)		Length of Bood Segment (yik)		ROLV/DI	Resultan	t length of	road that	can be re	placed								
and an and a second second							Barris and Barris															
Roads Backtop		Party Statute 1	AL				Hoads Beacktop				1100 miles	and a										
Prate per tan	10.101	STORE DIG THIS	Descarop				Parent accurate			1. Ertor	and code "Ad	water.										
Cost our Skierts	50.00 0	withing cost page	on an and				Average OV part age Tag		38.187	Canadia	and the second second	acatoli										
Toolant therease	2010 0	Telephone constant	Herbrand of h	without David	aut.		Cost one SV logit		50.00	Tending	account provide											
I shath of coad instrument (unit)		Finter learth of	mad				Required thy least		-	3. Teter	manufered the	some d	Blackton	darmed .								
Wighth of road sectorent (att)		Enter within of	mad				Thirdes of Baard Sectoret on	tinte	amount	Gandlari	hiarkton r	other that a	ar funde	or musicable								
Vision variation they of road segment	0.0 0	eaultant Project	shiard sard is	ches.			Writth of finant segment betal		10000000	A Febers	with of ma	ad population	I.	a second a								
Cruit per road segment	50.9	multiple cost of	thoses segment	it bettered	(ni		Length of Road Sections (Add)		#D/V/D	Residant	t lesight of	road that	next be-	replaced								
the second second second		control and the	- not highly h	a possible			et de la citat adress (hau		Pace Ay An	Conception of	- Selfarde	0.00		- chesters								
Sidewalk							Sidewalk															
Rate per 17	1	Enter hid rate :	densels realized	internal.			Funch available			1. Trier i	under ave	eldele										
Length of ademaik segment (ft)	2	Enter length at	sidewalk				Rate per SF			2. Enter H	bid rate "re	construct	01*									
Width of sale walk segment (ft)	3	Enter width of	stewalk				Square feet of sidewalk segme	est.	MCH V/DI	Resultant	t SF potenti	al per tun	ding avai	lable								
Square fast of sidewalk segment	0.8	isultarit St					Wighth of sidewalk segment			3. Enter a	witth of sid	enalk we	tient									
1 or 2 sides of read	4	Enter one side	of read or two	5001			1 or 2 sides of street			4. Enter a	one side of	read or ty	it sides									
Cost per sidewalk project	\$0. m	routing cost of a	town wegnier	d (estimation	eri).		Length of road for sidewalk		FOX/DI	Revultari	t length al t	road that	ifenak	could be repla-	ued .							
Carrier and State of Control of C							A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O															
Stormwater Drainage							Stormwater Drainage															
Rate per LP	1	Enter bid rate p	our linear foot	of pipe sta	of interv	4	Faridi available			1. Enter !	funding ava	riable										
Length of pipe segment (h)	2	Enter livear fea	et to be replac	e¢			RategeruF			2. Enter	bid rate per	Report for	it .									
Cost per replacement	5D 7	stating cost of	replacement				Lorgth of pipe		#DXV/DE	Resulting	ingth of a	draitoge t	het could	the replaced								

Figure 6.6

NOTE: Set-up of Cost Analysis worksheet, with spaces for your project information (input) and calculation results. The Left-side calculations are set up for accepting bid information and project area information and providing basic cost estimates. The Right-side calculations are set up for accepting information on the amount of funding available and bid information and providing project area or length estimates.

NOTE: enter the information specified in the input cells. Results will show in the output cells. There is a Total cost output cell at the bottom of the left-hand section for total costs with multiple project elements.

The Cost Analysis worksheet can be used to make calculations for a project and print the page to a hard copy or .pdf. The Cost Analysis worksheet can also be saved as an excel file with a different name for work apart from the database Tool. The cells in the calculation area are protected and cannot be chosen for copying directly to another excel file or word document until unprotected. It is recommended that the Cost Analysis sheet be left blank after use in order to be ready for next user.

6.7 DROP-DOWN MENUS

Standardization of data is very important to being able to sort or filter that data. Specific information entered when updating the database needs to be entered in a standard format so that the filtering and sorting tools continue to function. For example, if the location data "Cedar Street" is typed in as "Cedar St", and as "Cedar Street", and as "Cdar St" by mistake, sorting for "Cedar Street" will not capture all locations. Dropdown menus have been created and linked to several worksheets to assist in the standardization of data entry.

Drop-down menus are listed on the worksheet named "Drop-down menus" by asset type. Each menu is connected to the relevant asset worksheet through data validation. Each menu also has several blank cells left ready at the bottom of the list. If new Street names or material types are added to those blank cells, the drop-down menu will be automatically updated. If major drop-down menu extensions are required, see Excel guidance on drop-down menus and data validation.

Note that there are different street naming conventions on several asset worksheets due to differing origins of data. The Drop-down menu for that page is connected to a consistent naming convention for that particular worksheet. For example, the Roads, Sewer Collection System and Water Line worksheets use the same format (PROSPECT ST.), while Storm Water Pipes and Hydrants worksheets uses another (PROSPECT ST). This is due to the Sewer Collection System and Water Line data coming from the same data source, while Storm Water data came from a different source and structure. These have been left as they were received so that this data can be worked with its original source data when necessary.

7.0 UPDATING THE TOOL

The Asset Management Tool includes information on many different types of assets. These assets are utilized by or maintained by different City departments. The maintenance needs and schedules for the different assets are different and therefore the need for updating data will also differ by department.

The City will assign an Asset Database Tool "keeper" to maintain the integrity of the database. This person should also be coordinating with the different City departments to maintain updated asset data. Communication between departments is important to keeping asset data up-to-date.

Any major changes to the database Tool, including the addition of data from new sources, should also be updated in the Metadata. The Metadata is included as the last worksheet within the database Tool, and is meant to document data sources and data creation methods.

Table 7.0 Update Schedule

Asset Type	Update Schedule
Water lines, stormwater, sewer lines, water	Data update after replacement projects are
treatment facility, wastewater treatment	completed
facility	
Roads	Data updated after pavement or reconstruction
	projects, especially important to update water,
	sewer and stormwater system work done at
	the same time in those worksheets
Vehicles	Update when a vehicle is added to or removed
	from the fleet
Streetlights, traffic lights, way-finding signs	Update when replaced
Buildings, City Land, University Settlement	Update when projects are completed or
	property ownership changes
Bridges, Stormwater MS4 inspections	Update asset when inspected under regulatory
	programs

7.1 ADDITIONAL DATA CAPTURE

There are assets in the database Tool for which additional information is needed. Most often there will be a need to update data as specific work projects or inspections are completed, as in Table 7.0, however specific needs for data capture identified include entry of hydrant replacement and re-numbering information that currently exists in handwritten form. The hydrants data provided in the database Tool is taken from the City of Beacon Access Database compiled by Lanc and Tully Engineering and Surveying PC. The information is outdated to due a hydrant replacement project between 2002 and 2009. The database Tool includes a worksheet of hydrant locations to assist the City in updating this information.

The City may also consider compilation of data that was not available to Delaware Engineering during the creation of the Tool, such as the department assignment for each vehicle, and area of each parking lot, for example.

7.2 STANDARDIZATION OF UNITS

There may also be discrepancies in the units of measure between different assets. The data in the Tool came from several different sources, and lengths, for example, may be in different units, such as feet or yards. Users should be aware of this. It may be best to keep each asset in the same units as the original data set for integration of lists created from the Tool with the original data. The City will have to determine how best to standardize units in the future.

8.0 DATABASE DOCUMENT CONTROL AND CHANGE HISTORY

Document Control includes maintaining databases and using proper distribution and revision procedures to maintain quality. Maintaining a history of changes and updates made to the

database Tool will be part of document control by keeping a record of what changes are made when and why. A Change History form is included as the first worksheet of the database Tool.

One or two City staff should be assigned primary roles in maintaining the database Tool and determining who may edit the database and upon what occasions. These people will maintain the current "Master" of the database Tool on the City network and any back-up media. When someone is assigned a database update duty, they will be the only one making changes at that time. Each Department should submit update needs and request updates (hydrants replace under X project, vehicles disposed of, etc.).

When changes are made the database Tool keepers will ensure that the Change History is completed (see Table 8.0 for example) and return the new database to Lock for use. While Locked, no changes can be made to the database Tool, however, the filtering and sorting functions will not be available.

Other departments may take a copy of the Tool for their own use but the copy will be renamed something different from the Master File name so that it is not returned to Master File status by mistake. For example, "Asset Tool Beacon 08062019", may be copied to the DPW and called "DPW Asset Tool copy 08062019". Thereafter that copy is the DPWs. Not to be confused with current Master File.

Database Name	Date of	Purpose of	By Whom	New Name
	Change	Change	-	
Asset Tool	original		Delaware	
08062019			Engineering	
Asset Tool	11/05/2019	Update Hydrant	DPW John	Asset Tool
08062019		data	Smith	11052019

Table 8.0 Change History Form Example

Change History Sheet Instructions

Database Name – current database that is being updated, current date in name "City of Beacon Asset Tool 08062019"

Date of Change - when are changes/updates made

Purpose of Change – list updates to what asset or tab, why (for example, Vehicle Tab updated to include purchase of new vehicles, or removal of vehicles from inventory)

By Whom - person and department making change

New Name – rename the database with date of change, example "City of Beacon Asset Tool 11052019"